
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

April 7, 2020  9:00 am 
pppp.M. 

 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar 

 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman John Riggs 

 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations 

 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 03-17-2020 Work Session Minutes 

b) 03-17-2020 Council Minutes 

c) 03-22-2020 Special Called Meeting Minutes 

 

6. Discussion of Emergency Measures relating to COVID-19. 

 

7. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11: A Resolution for the City of 

Statesboro to remain a Georgia Certified City of Ethics. 

 

8. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2020-12: A Resolution Approving 

Application for Funding in the amount of $5,558.14 from the Local Government 

Scrap Tire Abatement Program administered by the Georgia Environmental Protection 

Division.   

 

9. Consideration of a Motion to Approve the sale of the following items that are surplus 

equipment Ten (10) Communications Headsets (manufactured by Peltor and Liberator), 

Twenty-Seven (27) Motorola Portable Radios (11 are XTS 2500 and 16 are Model 5000) 

and Eight (8) rifles (manufactured by Colt) with serial numbers A0137129 A0188963, 

A0206087, A0137056, A0137096, A0137107 and A1089038. 

 

10. Consideration of a Motion to Approve the updated Automatic Aid Agreement between 

Bulloch County Fire Department and Statesboro Fire Department as submitted. 

 

11. Consideration of a Motion to Approve the Community and Improvements Agreement 

with LSSD Hartford, LLC for the Hartford Subdivision located along Packinghouse Road 

(Tax Parcel MS69 000003A 000). 

 

12. Consideration of a motion to approve Award of Contract for “City of Statesboro Street 

Resurfacing FY 2020” to Sikes Brothers Inc. in the bid amount of $996,500.00 with 

approval to spend up to the budgeted amount of $1,100,952.80 for additional work based 

on contractor’s unit bid prices.  



 

 

 

13. Consideration of a motion to award a contract to Atlantic & Southern Equipment LLC in 

the amount of $55,909.75 for the purchase and installation of a tractor-mounted boom 

mower. 

 

14. Consideration of a motion to award a contract to Yancey Brothers in the amount of 

$157,841.00 for the purchase of a backhoe. 

 

15. Other Business from City Council 

 

16.  City Managers Comments 

 

17. Public Comments (General) 

 

18. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 

 

19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
WORK SESSION MINUTES 

MARCH 17, 2020 
 
Mayor & Council Work Session        58 E. Main St. Joe Brannen Hall                                                4:00 PM 
 
A Work Session of the Statesboro City Council was held on March 17, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. at Joe Brannen Hall, 
58 East Main Street. Present was Mayor Jonathan McCollar; Council Members: Phil Boyum, Paulette Chavers, 
Venus Mack and Shari Barr. Also present was City Clerk Leah Harden, City Attorney Cain Smith, City 
Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles and Public Information Officer Layne Phillips. 
Councilmember John Riggs was absent. 
  
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar at 4:01PM 
 

1) Emergency Management Ordinance  
 

City Attorney Cain Smith brought before the councilmembers an ordinance revision/replacement of Chapter 
30 Emergency and Disaster Management of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances. This will replace the 
existing chapter 30 which was last revised in 1987. Cain put together this ordinance based on the GMA 
model emergency management released in 2010, he went through each section of the ordinance with council. 
The purpose of the ordinance is to allow the Mayor to declare a state of emergency. The duration would be 
30 days unless extended by the mayor. Councilmember Boyum suggested if the state of emergency should 
go past 30 days, that the mayor and council be on the same page. Cain stated that he would add continuum 
past 30 days needs mayor and council approval. Staff recommendation was suggested for this ordinance. 
 

2) Parks Assessment Workshop 
  

Ronald Huffman with Wood Environmental and Infrastructure Solutions attended the meeting via 
teleconference. Ron stated after visiting the parks and holding interviews he had come up with program 
needs and sketches of the three parks. Ron stated the parks had been well maintained, but with age there was 
a lot of facilities that are inaccessible, as well as meeting code requirements. 
Luetta Moore Park, the key focus is diverse programming, splash pad/aquatics, teaching pool/shallow depth 
learning, multi-age playground, tennis; expanded parking and keeping the little league field a “Sacred Cow”. 
Sketch concepts include removal of softball field, add splash pad and three lane teaching pool, add a 
restroom and bath house, volleyball, two tennis courts, multi-age playground, expanded parking (42 spaces), 
add 2 family pavilions with grills and a detention pond. In addition, renovations and improved parking for 
the little league field. Councilmember Boyum suggested if they were going to extend the parking, if they 
could make it more environmentally friendly instead of black top and expressed concern about there not 
being any green space, for kids to just run around 
 Grady Street Park, the key focus presented is to install covered basketball, playground, parking, 
landscape/trees, walking trail, family pavilion/BBQ and renovated restrooms. The sketch concepts covered 
basketball pavilion – secured entry, expanded parking, playground multi-age, 2 family picnic pavilions with 



grills, landscape and tree planting, outdoor ½ basketball court, accessible walking trail, and renovated 
bathroom/add drinking fountain. 
Memorial park the key focus was the impact from “Creek on the Blue Mile”, renovate the playground, 
outdoor amphitheater, and Veteran’s Memorial. The sketch concepts integrate the “Creek on the Blue Mile”, 
preserve/reuse existing infrastructure where possible, establish uncovered N/S drainage way as a natural 
waterway, locate a 2500 seat amphitheater with fixed and grass seating, separate area for a Veterans 
Memorial park, and identify areas for overflow and event parking.  
Council member Shari Barr stated we should start with Grady Street Park and then move to the key pieces in 
the other two parks. 

 
3) Alcohol License – City and State Laws 

This item is postponed and will be brought back to the next work session April 21, 2020. 
 
City Manager Charles Penny stated this COVID- 19 situation has been a challenge. We are looking at best 
practices for our employees. A group of staff is putting together this information and will get something to 
me later this week. We will be having someone to deep clean City Hall. Cleaning will also be done at our 
other buildings where public has access. Currently we are at a level 2 for our operations. 
 
Councilmember Shari Barr stated would like us to have a press release to include all the local agencies that 
are available for support and help during this time. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:17 pm 
 



 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

MARCH 17, 2020 
 
Regular Meeting                            50 E. Main St. City Hall Council Chambers                                  5:30 PM 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Jonathan McCollar called the meeting to order  
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE 
Councilmember Venus Mack gave the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ATTENDENCE  

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Present  
Phil Boyum Councilmember Present    
Paulette Chavers Councilmember Present  
Venus Mack Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present  
Shari Barr Councilmember Present  

 
Other staff present: City Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles, Public Information Officer 
Layne Phillips, City Attorney Cain Smith and City Clerk Leah Harden. 
 
3. Recognitions/Public Presentations None 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item):  None 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 03-03-2020 Council Minutes 

  
A motion was made to approve the consent agenda.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
6. Consideration of a motion to award a department owned firearm to retiring Lieutenant Mike Chappel after 

33 years of exemplary service.  
 
A motion was made to award a department owned firearm to retiring Lieutenant Mike Chappel.   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember  Venus Mack 

Councilmember  Paulette Chavers 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



 
  RESULT: 

 
  MOVER: 

 
  SECONDER: 

 
  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
7. Consideration of a Motion to approve the submission of a Grant Application by the Statesboro Police 

Department to the U. S. Department of Justice.   
 
A motion was made to approve the submission of a grant application by the Statesboro Police Department to the U.S. 
Department of Justice.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

Mayor Jonathan McCollar stated all public hearings after agenda item #8 will be consolidated into one public hearing. 
 
8. Public Hearing and Consideration of a motion to approve application for an Alcohol License Sec. 6-13 (a). 

A) V & V Brothers LLC 
DBA: VIP Store 
301 N. Main Street  
Naynaben Chaudhari    

 
A motion was made to open the public hearing.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember  John Riggs 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember  Phil Boyum 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember  Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember  Venus Mack 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Shari Barr 



 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
A motion was made to approve the application for an alcohol license for V & V Brothers LLC DBA: VIP Store located 
at 301 N Main Street.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
9. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION SE 20-02-01: Lufituaeb 

McCray Holloway requests a special exception for 0.14 acres of property located at 324 James Street to 
utilize a portion of the existing building as a beauty salon/barbershop in the R-6 (Single Family Residential) 
zoning district (Tax Parcel S09 000033 000). 
 

10. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 20-02-10: Frank Parker 
requests a variance from Article XXX, Section 3010(A) regarding the requirement to provide sidewalks 
along the public right-of-way in the Downtown District for 1.06 acres of property located at 239 South 
Main Street (Tax Parcel S19 000019 001). 

 
11. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 20-02-13: J.R. Hendley 

Foundation, Inc. requests a variance from Article XXX, Section 3010(A) regarding the requirement to 
provide sidewalks along the public right-of-way in the Downtown District for 2.44 acres of property located 
at 672 South College Street (Tax Parcel MS51 000024 000).  

 
12. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve:   

 
A) APPLICATION V 20-02-04: Watkins Real Estate Group requests a variance from Article XV, Section 

1509(C), Table 5 regarding the aggregate square footage allowed in Sign District 3 for approximately 
49.65 acres of property located on Old Register Road (Tax Parcel 076 000001 000).       
 

B) APPLICATION V 20-02-05: Watkins Real Estate Group requests a variance from Article XV, Section 
1509(C), Table 5 regarding the number of free standing signs allowed in Sign District 3 for 
approximately 49.65 acres of property located on Old Register Road (Tax Parcel 076 000001 000).    
 

C) APPLICATION V 20-02-06: Watkins Real Estate Group requests a variance from Article XV, Section 
1509(C), Table 5 regarding the maximum square footage allowed for free standing signs in Sign District 
3 for approximately 49.65 acres of property located on Old Register Road (Tax Parcel 076000001000). 
  

D) APPLICATION V 20-02-07: Watkins Real Estate Group requests a variance from Article XV, Section 
1509(C), Table 5 regarding the maximum height for freestanding signs allowed in Sign District 3 for 
approximately 49.65 acres located on Old Register Road (Tax Parcel 076 000001 000).   
 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Shari Barr 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



E) APPLICATION V 20-02-08: Watkins Real Estate Group requests a variance from Article XV, Section 
1509(C), Table 5 regarding the maximum square footage allowed for building signs in Sign District 3 
for approximately 49.65 acres located on Old Register Road (Tax Parcel 076 000001 000).  

 
F) APPLICATION V 20-02-09: Watkins Real Estate Group requests a variance from Article XV, Section 

1509(C), Table 5 regarding the maximum number of building signs allowed on a single elevation in Sign 
District 3 for approximately 49.65 acres located on Old Register Road (Tax Parcel 076 000001 000). 

 
A motion was made to open the public hearing for agenda items 9, 10, 11, & 12 A-F.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing for agenda items 9, 10, 11, 12 A-F.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
A motion was made to approve applications SE 20-02-01, V20-02-10, V 20-02-13, V 20-02-04, V 20-02-05, V 20-02-
06, V 20-02-07, V 20-02-08, V 20-02-09.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

13. Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor McCollar called on City Attorney Cain Smith to speak to the revisions to Chapter 30 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances previously discussed at the Work Session.  
City Attorney Cain Smith recapped the information regarding the revision/replacement of Chapter 30 from the previous 
work session. What this ordinance does is allow the Mayor to declare a local state of emergency. The declaration would 
need to be confirmed by Council either at a special called meeting or at a regular meeting.  The one originally presented 
ordinance at the work session and upon recommendation by Councilmember Phil Boyum and approval by the present 
members of council there is a slight revision to Section 30-3 (f) which is the Continuance of a local state of emergency 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember  Phil Boyum 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember  Venus Mack 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember  Venus Mack 

Councilmember  Paulette Chavers 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



 
adding to the last line, “No state of local emergency shall continue for longer than 30 days, unless renewed by the Mayor 
and confirmed by a majority of quorum of City Council.”. 
Mr. Smith stated the typical ordinance presentation is that Council tells us to do it then we bring it back for first reading 
and then second reading for approval which would require three meetings under Section 2-2-4 of City code of 
Ordinances. However, upon recommendation of City Staff, which we are recommending, and unanimous vote of 
Council all those formalities can be waived which would allow this to be immediately effective.  
 

A motion was made to approve revisions of Chapter 30 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances and waive the formalities 
of Sec. 2-2-4.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

 
 

14.  City Managers Comments; None 
 

15. Public Comments (General)  None 
 

16. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” “Real Estate” 
and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 

 
At 5:49 pm a motion was made to enter into executive session.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
Mayor McCollar called the regular meeting back to stating no action was taken in executive session. 
 
At 6:01 pm a motion was made to exit executive session.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



 
17. Consideration of a Motion to appointments for the following Commissions and Boards 

 
A) Keep Statesboro Bulloch Beautiful Advisory Board  
B) Statesboro Tree Board 
C) Statesboro Beautification Commission 
D) Commission on Diversity and Inclusion 

 
City Clerk Leah Harden read names of individuals for each commission or board as follows: 
 
Keep Statesboro Bulloch Beautiful Advisory Board:  
Kathryn Kaufmann  
Donald Armel  
Ashely Sheffield  
 
Statesboro Tree Board  
Greg Brock  
James Thibudeau  
 
Statesboro Beautification Commission:  
Maurice Coley  
Rich chambers,  
Darius Deloach  
Adreinne Dobbs  
 
Commission on Diversity and Inclusion  
Deion Byrd  
Nandi Marshall.  
 
A motion was made to approve these appointments as read.    
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

Mayor McCollar stated this is an interesting time for the City of Statesboro.  We have to take care of ourselves our 
families and our Community. Any concerns you may have look to the CDC and Georgia Department of Public Health 
websites for up to date current information on the COVID-19.  Continue to practice social distancing.  
  
18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 

 
A motion was made to adjourn.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember Venue Mack 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:04 pm  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

MARCH 22, 2020 
 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING       50 E. Main St. City Hall Council Chambers                              2:00 PM 
 
Notification of this meeting and its contents was emailed to the Statesboro Herald on March 21, 2020 at 2:45 pm.  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Jonathan McCollar called the meeting to order  
 
ATTENDENCE  

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Present  
Phil Boyum Councilmember Present    
Paulette Chavers Councilmember Present  
Venus Mack Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present  
Shari Barr Councilmember Present  

 
Other staff present was: City Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles, Public Information Officer 
Layne Phillips, City Attorney Cain Smith and City Clerk Leah Harden. 
 
2. COVID- 19 Update and Strategy Discussion 
 
Mayor McCollar stated this meeting is the City’s response to the COVID-19 situation for our community. The purpose 
of this meeting is to give an update on the information that has been shared with us over the past few days.  We want 
everyone to understand that COVID-19 is a very serious and deadly matter and a contagious situation. Dr. Mark 
McCracken a local physician and Medical Director of Hospitalist at East Georgia Regional Medical Center and Dr. 
Anna Benson joined the meeting via conference call. Dr. McCracken stated there have been no positive cases. With the 
consensus of hospital physicians, COVID-19 is believed to exist in our community but due to the lack of testing 
available we are not able to tell how many cases are here.  
Mayor McCollar read a communication sent to him by several local physicians. Attached. 
 
Councilmember Barr stated we need to really enforce the social distancing to keep others from getting sick. In doing so 
it will flatten the curve.  
 
Councilmember Boyum stated thirty days is a bit excessive. Most businesses have been proactive and they are taking a 
big hit. Lots of individuals have been laid off.  
 
Mayor McCollar read the Executive Order. This order will be effect for the next 16 days and will be revisited at the 
April 7, 2020 Council Meeting. 
 
Councilmember Barr: made some recommendations that will help to curb this, reach out to people you know call email 
text snap chat etc.   
 
Dr. Anthony Chappell stated he appreciates the Mayor and Council coming together for such an occasion the more we 
can prepare the better off we will be at the end of this.   
 



Councilmember Chavers stated this is a difficult decision to make for the City but we need to work together. I know 
there are many individuals who are affected by it but I am here for the life of the people. Setting this executive order 
right now at this point is what is best for the individuals here in the City of Statesboro. 
 
Charles Penny stated City Hall be closed to the public tomorrow March 23, 2020 for sanitization. City employees will 
report to work. We will be cleaning other building as well and but not tomorrow and we will let the public know when 
that happens.   
 
Councilmember Boyum stated we need to require sick individuals to stay home not just encourage.  

 
A motion was made to adjourn.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:36 pm 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Chavers, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   















 

 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Venus Mack, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari Barr, District 5 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

 
 
 
To: City Manager Charles Penny  
 
From: Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 
Date: 03-30-2020 
 
RE: GMA’s Re-Certification for the Certified Ethics Program 
 
Policy Issue: The City of Statesboro is scheduled to re-certify in June 2020 as a member in GMA’s 
Ethics Program. A letter requesting approval to re-certify in the Ethics Program and a Resolution 
re-adopting the five Ethics Principals is due to GMA by April 30, 2020. 
 
Recommendation: Mayor and Council approve a Resolution re-adopting the five Ethics 
Principals. 
 
Budget Impact: None 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Resolution 2020-11 
 
 



Resolution 2020-11: 

A Resolution for the City of Statesboro to remain a Georgia Certified City of Ethics 

 

WHEREAS: the board of directors of the Georgia Municipal Association has established a certified  
  City of Ethics Program and; 

 

WHEREAS: THE City of Statesboro, wishes to be certified as a Certified City of Ethics under the GMA 
Program and; 

 

WHEREAS: part of the certification process requires the mayor and Council to subscribe to the 
ethics principles approved by the GMA board; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: by the governing authority of the City of Statesboro Georgia that as 
a group and as individuals the governing authority subscribes to the following ethics principles and 
pledges to conduce its affairs accordingly: 
 

• Serve Others, Not Ourselves 
• Use Resources with Efficiency and Economy  
• Treat all People Fairly 
• Use the Power of Our Position for the Well Being of our Constituents 
• Create an Environment of Honesty, Openness and Integrity 

 
 
RESOLVED this 7th day of April 2020 
 
 
________________________________   ______________________________________ 
Mayor, Jonathan McCollar    Councilmember Phil Boyum 
 
 
________________________________   ______________________________________ 
Councilmember Paulette Chavers   Councilmember Venus Mack 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________________ 
Councilmember John Riggs    Councilmember Shari Barr 
 

 
                            ______________________________________ 

Attest: Leah Harden, City Clerk    



 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

                         Leah Harden, City Clerk 
I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Venus Mack, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari Barr, District 5 

 
  
   
 
  
 
 
    
To:   Charles Penny, City Manager 
             Jason Boyles, Assistant City Manager 
  John Washington, Public Works / Engineering Director 
 
From:  Robert Seamans, Streets and Parks Superintendent 
 
Date:  March 19, 2020  
 
RE: Local Government Scrap Tire Right-of-Way Abatement Program 

Application 
 
 
Policy Issue:  Grant Application 
 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends application to Georgia Environmental Protection Division (GA 
EPD) requesting $5,558.14 in funds for the removal of scrap tires from the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia public right-of-ways.  
 
Background:  
This will be the second year that the City of Statesboro has participated in this 
program. The Local Government Scrap Tire Right-of-Way Abatement Program 
administered by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division provides 
financial reimbursement to qualified local governments for the collection and 
recycling of scrap tires from public right-of-ways. 
 
The only financial obligation is City forces for the labor and equipment 
necessary to collect the tires. No local match in funds are required. 
 
 
Budget Impact:  None 
 
Council Person and District: All – citywide 
 
Attachments: Resolution, Program Application  



RESOLUTION 2020-12:  

A RESOLUTION APPROVING APPLICATION FOR FUNDING FROM THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT SCRAP TIRE 
ABATEMENT PROGRAM 

 

THAT WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council have found that scrap tires in the public right of way is a 
nuisance that creates adverse effects on the environment and quality of life of the citizens of 
Statesboro, Georgia; and, 

THAT WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have found that the Local Government Scrap Tire 
Abatement Program is desirable in order to provide financial support to the safe and effective removal 
of scrap tires from the public right of way in City of Statesboro, Georgia; and,  

WHEREAS, City staff shall prepare an application to said program to provide funding for an amount up 
to $5,558.14 for reimbursement for costs incurred in the collection and proper disposal of scrap tires 
removed from the public right of ways in Statesboro, Georgia; and, 

Whereas, said Program allows for the disbursement funds over 12 month period; and, 

Whereas, said Program requires no additional financial match: 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by, the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 

Section 1.      That the Mayor and City Council hereby authorize the submittal of application to the 
Georgia Environmental Protection Division for funding from the Local Government Scrap Tire Abatement 
Program. 

Section 2.      That the Mayor and City Council hereby authorize to execute all documents related to the 
application of said grant. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA          

  

By:  ________________________                         Attest:  ______________________      

       Jonathan McCollar, Mayor                Leah Harden, City Clerk        

 

 

 



 
 

 

City of Statesboro 
Public Works and Engineering Department  

P.O. Box 348     912.764.0681 (Voice) 
Statesboro, Georgia   30459  912.764.7680 (Fax) 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
To: Charles Penny, City Manager 
       Jason Boyles, Assistant City Manager 
       John Washington, Director, Public Works and Engineering Department 
       City West, Finance Director 
 
From: Robert Seamans, Streets and Parks Superintendent 
 
Date: March18, 2020 
 
Ref: GA EPD Local Government Scrap Tire Abatement Reimbursement Project 
 

Local Government Scrap Tire Abatement Reimbursement Application 
Right of Way Clean-Up 

City of Statesboro - FY 2021 
 
Project Dates:  
 
2020 – 2021 from approval date to June 30, 2021 
July to September – Quarterly Report due October 2020 
October to December – Quarterly Report due January 2021 
January to March – Quarterly Report due April 2021 
April to June – Quarterly Report due July 2021 
Final Report due July 2021 
 
Project Boundaries: 
 
The project will be located within the city limits of the City of Statesboro. Specifically, along street 
and drainage right of ways.  
 

Project Operations: 
 
Scrap tires will be pick up from the City of Statesboro right of ways by the Public Works crews. The 
tires will be brought back to our Public Works Facility and placed in a designated roll-off for Right 
of Way Tires. The Sanitation Superintendent will be responsible for monitoring the roll-off and 
having it transported to the Statesboro / Bulloch County Landfill – Transfer station where the tires 
will be stored in a designated area for right of way tires. The Solid Waste Disposal Superintendent 



 
 

 

will be responsible for monitoring the tires and when there are enough tires to fill a transport trailer 
the SWD Superintendent will make arrangements for Rackleff Enterprises, LLC. To transport the 
tires to Quality Tire Recycling, Inc. 
 
 

Documentation: 
 
The tires transported to Quality Tire Recycling, Inc. will need to be received and invoiced separate 
individual documents clearly noted that these are right of way tires. The documentation will be 
turned in to the Project Manager who will maintain the documents and compile needed reports. The 
Project Manager will coordinate all information with the City of Statesboro Finance Department as 
per our grant policy. 
 
 

Attachment:  
 
Guidelines for the EPD Local Government Scrap Tire Abatement Reimbursement Program 



john_washington
Highlight















Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

City Council Agenda Memorandum 
 
To:  Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Date: 3-31-2020 
 
RE: Updated Automatic Aid Agreement with Bulloch County for Fire Services 
 
Policy Issue: NA   
 
Recommendation: Approval of the updated Automatic Aid Agreement between Bulloch County Fire 
Department and Statesboro Fire Department as submitted. 
 
Background: The City of Statesboro Fire Department and Bulloch County Fire Department originally 
entered onto an Automatic Aid Agreement in 2010.  The purpose of this Agreement was to render 
supplemental fire services and resources in a manner that would be mutually beneficial for both fire 
departments.  Over the years since entering into the Agreement, both fire departments have changed in a 
manner that now requires updating the document to reflect each fire department’s current operational 
information and capabilities as they relate to the Agreement.   Examples of these changes include but are 
not limited to: 

- Removing the “City of Statesboro Public Safety Director” position from the agreement. 

o When the Agreement was entered into in 2010, the City had a Director of Public Safety 
which served as the Department Head for both the Police Department and Fire 
Departments.  This position is no longer utilized within the City of Statesboro 
organizational structure, and therefore should be removed from the Automatic Aid 
Agreement. The updated Agreement replaces the “Statesboro Public Safety Director” 
with the “Statesboro Fire Chief”. 

- Changes in Addendum A that allow for the Statesboro Fire Chief and the Bulloch County Fire Chief, 
in collaboration, to determine specific operational needs while maintaining the spirit of the 
Agreement’s intent. 



Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

o Examples of this would include such things as what type of apparatus responds for 
specific incident types, which radio channel is assigned and utilized for fireground 
communications, etc. 

In Addition to reflecting and/or updating each fire department’s operational information, an updated 
Agreement is needed to ensure that residents and/or property owners within the City of Statesboro and 
Bulloch County are eligible to receive the appropriate Insurance Services Organization (ISO) Public 
Protection Classification (PPC) rating.  Automatic Aid Agreements are utilized during an ISO PPC 
evaluation of a fire department and can help with a community’s overall score/rating.   

It is important to note that none of the changes within the proposed updated Agreement alter the 
fundamental intentions, principles and/or terms outlined in the original Agreement.  The proposed 
updated Automatic Aid Agreement between the City of Statesboro Fire Department and Bulloch County 
Fire Department has been reviewed by both the City and County attorneys as well as the City and 
County Managers.  

 
Budget Impact: None 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Agreement of Automatic Aid between the Bulloch County Fire Department and the City 
of Statesboro Fire Department. 
  



1 
 

AGREEMENT OF AUTOMATIC AID 

BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA / STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ________day of _______________ 

2020, by and between Bulloch County, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia acting by 

and through its duly elected Board of Commissioners (herein after referred to as "Bulloch 

County") and Statesboro, Georgia, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia 

acting by and through its duly elected city officials (herein after referred to as ("Statesboro"); 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, Bulloch County and Statesboro each maintain a fire department for the 

purpose of suppression, protection, prevention, and rescue; and 

WHEREAS, Bulloch County and Statesboro have determined that it is to the mutual 

advantage and benefit of each of the parties hereto that they render supplemental fire 

suppression, protection, and rescue to the other party in the event of a fire or other local 

emergency, and to take part in joint training exercises, and to assist in lowering insurance rates; 

and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the signatories hereto to enter into this Agreement for 

automatic aid pursuant to the 1983 Constitution of the State of Georgia, Article IX, Section II, 

Paragraph 3 and the Official Code of Georgia Annotated _ 36-69 "Georgia Mutual Aid Act." 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, and for other 

good and valuable consideration, the parties hereunto agree as follows: 



2 
 

ARTICLE 1 - AUTOMATIC AID  

 

Paragraph 1.0 The parties shall establish a mutually beneficial response protocol as 

designated and agreed upon by the Bulloch County Public Safety Director, the Bulloch County 

Fire Chief and the Statesboro Fire Chief. This response protocol may be changed to reflect 

additions or deletions of the response protocol with the approval of all parties. 

Paragraph 1.1 In the event of any fire rescue, disturbance, or other fire related local 

emergency that may occur, Bulloch County and Statesboro shall furnish such fire suppression, 

protection, and rescue services as may be reasonably required to cope with such emergency, in 

addition to the first response assignment, subject to the limitations hereinafter set forth in this 

Agreement. 

Paragraph 1.2 The level of automatic aid shall be extended to a level agreed upon by the 

Bulloch County Public Safety Director, the Bulloch County Fire Chief and the Statesboro Fire 

Chief and included herein as Addendum A. 

 

 

ARTICLE 2 - SUPERVISION 

Paragraph 2.0 The furnishing jurisdiction shall dispatch appropriate personnel, officers 

and apparatus. The responding personnel, officers and apparatus shall coordinate resources of the 

furnishing jurisdiction and shall report to the IC (Incident Commander) of the jurisdiction having 

authority. 



3 
 

Paragraph 2.1 When furnishing jurisdiction is receiving aid, then that officer shall 

coordinate and give the general directions as to the work to be done. This officer will be in 

command until properly relieved by an Officer of the jurisdiction receiving aid. 

Paragraph 2.2 Personnel who are furnished will work as far as possible under their own 

supervisors and with their own equipment except as provided in Paragraph 2.1 

Paragraph 2.3 All general directions relative to the work will be given the appropriate 

officers of the jurisdiction receiving aid. 

 

ARTICLE 3 – LIABILITY 

 

Paragraph 3.0 There shall be no liability imposed on any party or its personnel for failure 

to respond for the purpose of extinguishing or controlling fire or other immediate response 

emergency. 

Paragraph 3.1 Every employee shall be deemed to be the employee and agent of their 

regular employer, and under no circumstances shall any employee be deemed to be an employee 

or agent of any entity other than their regular employer. 

Paragraph 3.2 All damages or repairs to any equipment or apparatus shall be the 

responsibility of the owner of said equipment or apparatus. 

 

ARTICLE 4 - CONSIDERATION 

 

Paragraph 4.0 No party under this Agreement will be required to pay any compensation 

to the other party under this Agreement for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  



4 
 

Paragraph 4.1 It is expressly agreed that the mutual advantage and protection afforded by 

this Agreement is adequate consideration to both parties. 

Paragraph 4.2 Each party pursuant to the Agreement shall comply with the workers 

compensation laws of the State of Georgia without any cost to the other party. 

Paragraph 4.3 Each party shall pay the salaries, benefits, and all other compensation for 

its own personnel without cost to the other party. 

 

ARTICLE 5 - RELEASE OF CLAIMS 

 

Paragraph 5.0 Each of the parties agree to release the other party from any and all 

liabilities, claims, judgments, costs, or demands for damage to its own property whether directly 

arising or indirectly arising out of the use of any vehicle, equipment, or apparatus by the other 

party during the provision of service pursuant to the Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 6 - INJURIES TO PERSONNEL 

 

Paragraph 6.0 Any damage or other compensation which is required to be paid to any 

fire employee by reason of an injury occurring while their services are being utilized pursuant to 

this Agreement shall be the sole liability and responsibility of the party regularly employing that 

person. 

 

 

 



5 
 

ARTICLE 7 - NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

 

Paragraph 7.0 This agreement shall not be construed as, or deemed to be an agreement 

for the benefit of any third party or parties, and no third party or parties shall have any right of 

action hereunder for any cause whatsoever. 

 

ARTICLE 8 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

Paragraph 8.0 This Agreement shall commence upon its approval by the respective 

governing bodies of Bulloch County and Statesboro. This Agreement shall stand automatically 

renewed by the parties on January 1, 2021 and each year thereafter on January 1st, until such 

time as written notice of termination or modification is received by either party at least ninety 

(90) days prior to the expiration of the first term or any term thereafter. 

Paragraph 8.1 Nothing in this Article shall preclude termination pursuant to Article 14. 

 

ARTICLE 9 - DISPATCHING OF ALARM - AUTOMATIC AlD 

 

Paragraph 9.0 Central Dispatch will assign the appropriate Bulloch County Fire Station 

to assist Statesboro based on the incident location. Statesboro will respond based on Addendum 

A. 

 

 

 



6 
 

ARTICLE 10 - FIRE SCENE COMMUNICATIONS 

 

Paragraph 10.0 The Incident Commander of the jurisdiction having control shall provide 

specific instruction to the automatic aid officer arriving on the emergency scene. A common 

fireground channel may be assigned by the jurisdiction having control. 

Paragraph 10.1 Upon arriving on scene, the automatic aid officer shall keep his or her 

department informed of the state of the operation. If it appears the automatic aid equipment will 

be needed at the emergency scene for an extended period of time, the automatic aid officer 

should so advise Central Dispatch. 

 

ARTICLE 11 - MOVE UP EQUIPMENT 

 

Paragraph 11.0 Each party agrees and acknowledges that it will be the responsibility of 

each party to provide the backup coverage necessary of its own department. 

Paragraph 11.1 In the event that a jurisdiction had dedicated a major amount of fire 

suppression or specialized equipment to an incident, the jurisdiction may request aid to cover 

vacant areas by "moving up" mutual aid units into the affected jurisdiction. 

 

ARTICLE 12 – ADMINISTRATION 

 

Paragraph 12.0 It is agreed by each of the parties that for purposes of liaison and 

administration, the Bulloch County Fire Chief, Bulloch County Public Safety Director, and the 

Statesboro Fire Chief shall be jointly responsible. 



7 
 

ARTICLE 13 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

Paragraph 13.0 This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties 

and no modification thereof shall be binding unless evidenced by a subsequent signed written 

agreement. 

Paragraph 13.1 This Agreement shall be the sole instrument for the provisions of 

emergency fire service automatic aid between the parties. 

 

ARTICLE 14 - TERMINATION 

 

Paragraph 14.0 Either party to this Agreement may terminate the Agreement by giving not 

less than ninety (90) days advanced written notice to the other party. 

 

ARTICLE 15 - SEVERABILITY OF TERMS 

 

Paragraph 15.0 In the event that any part or provision of this Agreement is held to be 

invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full 

force and effect. 

 

ARTICLE 16 - GOVERNING LAW 

 

Paragraph 16.0 This Agreement shall be governed in all aspects by the laws of the State of 

Georgia. 



8 
 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto set their hands and seals. 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
County Attorney     Chairman, Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________  _________________________________ 
County Clerk      County Manager 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

 

_______________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Attorney      Mayor, City Council 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Clerk      Statesboro City Manager 
 
 
________________________________ 
Fire Chief, Statesboro 



9 
 

STATESBORO BULLOCH COUNTY AUTOMATIC FIRE AID AGREEMENT 

ADDENDUM A 

All aid must be dispatched to all reported structure fires in Statesboro and Bulloch County on the 

initial alarm. 

 

The automatic aid must be provided 24 hours a day, 365 days per year. 

 

All fire ground communications will have a common mobile and portable radio frequency 

capability. 

 

The fire ground communications channel will be assigned by Central (911) communications 

and/or in accordance with departmental policies of the department receiving automatic aid. 

 

For response to all structure fires, Bulloch County will furnish aid to Statesboro in the form of 

personnel and equipment. 

 

Bulloch County personnel may be combat firefighters to supplement Statesboro firefighting 

crews, to form a Rapid Intervention Team, or support personnel to assist with non-combat related 

activities as defined by the Georgia Firefighters Standards and Training Council. 

 

Bulloch County shall furnish equipment in the form of engines for fire suppression, tankers for 

water supply, aerial ladder company support, and service units for additional equipment. 

 

Bulloch County Central communications will dispatch the geographically closest Bulloch 

County fire district/station to the reported incident address to assist Statesboro on all reported 

structure fires in the City of Statesboro and the Statesboro Fire District. The dispatched Bulloch 

County fire district/station will respond with the appropriate personnel and equipment according 

to Bulloch County Fire Department Standard Operating Guidelines. 

 

Statesboro will respond with a minimum of one engine and two firefighters to all reported 

structure fires in Bulloch County outside the City of Statesboro and the Statesboro Fire District.  



10 
 

Additional personnel and/or apparatus may be included on the initial response as deemed 

appropriate and agreed to by the Bulloch County Fire Chief and Statesboro Fire Chief. 

 

This agreement shall, in addition to incident response, consist of a training component. 

 

The Bulloch County Fire Department shall train/drill once per month with the Statesboro Fire 

Department according to the following schedule. Each drill shall be 3 hours in duration, and the 

time, place, and curriculum calendar shall be determined in the month preceding the scheduled 

drills by the respective training officer's for the Bulloch County Fire Department and the 

Statesboro Fire Department. 

  
January— Bulloch County Stations 2, 3, 9 and Statesboro Fire Department 

February — Bulloch County Stations 4, 5 and Statesboro Fire Department 

March —Bulloch County Stations 6, 7, 8 and Statesboro Fire Department 

April — Bulloch County Stations 2, 3, 9 and Statesboro Fire Department 

May — Bulloch County Stations 4, 5 and Statesboro Fire Department 

June — Bulloch County Stations 6, 7, 8 and Statesboro Fire Department 

July— Bulloch County Stations 2, 3, 9 and Statesboro Fire Department 

August — Bulloch County Stations 4, 5 and Statesboro Fire Department 

September — Bulloch County Stations 6, 7, 8 and Statesboro Fire Department 

October — Bulloch County Stations 2, 3, 9 and Statesboro Fire Department 

November — Bulloch County Fire Stations 4, 5 and Statesboro Fire Department 

December — Bulloch County Fire Stations 6, 7 8 and Statesboro Fire Department 



CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Paulette Chavers, District 2 

Venus Mack, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Shari Barr, District 5 

 
 

 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Charles W. Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence    Certified City of Ethics  

Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                                   

www.statesboroga.gov  

To: Charles W. Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 

From: Owen Dundee, City Planner II 

 

Date: March 30, 2020 

 

RE: April 7, 2020 City Council Agenda Items 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Subdivision Regulations: Hartford Subdivision – 

“Improvement Agreement” and “Community Agreement”.  

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the LSSD Hartford, 

LLC/Hartford Subdivision Improvement and Community Agreements.  

 

Background: Lamar Smith Homes is in the process of developing a 150-lot single-

family home subdivision with associated site improvements and community 

amenities. The developer intends to hold the entire subdivision under one 

ownership entity. Therefore, the approval of the attached agreements will be 

required in order for the subdivision to receive City services. Additionally, the City 

Attorney and City Staff have reviewed and approved this agreement (Tax Parcel 

MS69 000003A 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: Boyum (District 1) 

 

Attachments: Hartford Subdivision Community and Improvement Agreement. 
 

http://www.statesboroga.gov/








VETERANS MEMORIAL PARKWAY
250' PUBLIC R/W

(DIVIDED ASPHALT SURFACE)

PACKINGHOUSE ROAD

80' PUBLIC R/W

(ASPHALT SURFACE)

W
IL

L
IS

 W
A

Y
60' R

IG
H

T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

 (P
R

IV
A

T
E

)

B
R

A
X

T
O

N
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

H
A

R
T

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

A
C

O
R

N
 L

A
N

E
60' P

U
B

L
IC

 R
/W

(A
SP

H
A

L
T

 SU
R

F
A

C
E

)

N
 64°08'44" E - 667.84'

T4

E9
E10

E11

E12

CE1

N 84°55'46" E - 352.10'

CE2

E13

E14

E15
E16

C
E3

E17
C

E4

E18
E19

CE5

S 84°55'46" W
 - 352.10'

CE6

E20

E21

E8

E29

E30 E31

S 66°18'31" W
 - 619.13'

E33

E34
E35

E22

CE7

N 03°56'06" W - 335.31'

N 03°56'06" W - 874.55'

C
E8

S 03°56'06" E - 619.14'

C
E9

N
 66°18'31" E - 401.63'

E23

CE10

S 23°41'29" E - 194.45'

CE11 N 31°42'06" W - 354.20'

CE12

E24

E25E26

CE13
S 31°42'06" E - 423.48'

CE14

CE15

E27

E28

CE16

E32

CE17

C
E18

C
E19

C
E20

S 66°18'31" W
 - 619.13'

C
E24

N 03°56'06" W - 301.84'

C
E21

N
 66°18'31" E - 406.94'

CE22S 49°53'15" E - 226.13'

T1

N 84°29'31" E - 399.11'

N 05°49'56" W - 281.93'

T2

T3

S 84°29'31" W
 - 399.31'

N
 66°18'31" E - 818.17'

N
 52°17'45" E - 310.36'

T5 T6

T7

N 05°49'56" W - 281.40'

C
E23

SH
EET

O
F

Prepared for:

SU
R

VEY D
ATE:

SERVICES, INC.
 EMC ENGINEERING 

SC
ALE:

D
ATE:

PR
O

JEC
T N

O
.:

SU
R

VEYED
 BY:

C
H

EC
KED

 BY:

D
ESIG

N
ED

 BY:
D

R
AW

N
 BY:

COLUMBUS, SAVANNAH, STATESBORO, AND VALDOSTA
OFFICE LOCATIONS: ALBANY, ATLANTA, AUGUSTA, BRUNSWICK,

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. BY DATE

G
R

APH
IC

 SC
ALE: 1" =

0'

PO Box 2086
1211 Merchant Way, Suite 201
Statesboro, GA 30458
Ph: (912) 764-7022
Fax: (912) 233-4580
statesboro@emc-eng.com
www.emc-eng.com

ENVIRONMENTAL

CIVIL
MARINE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION

PIN:MS69000003C000 & PIN: MS69000003A000
1209TH G.M.D., STATESBORO, BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

HARTFORD SUBDIVISION - PHASE 1

LSSD HARTFORD, LLC

18-2056
SAC-
D

EP
06/16/2019

W
PW

1" = 100'
10/08/2019

1
3

1 ADD (PRIVATE) TO ROAD R/W SAC 2/19/20

100'
100'

100'

50' OF A
UT

H
O

R
IZ

A
T ION

CER
T

IFIC
A

TE

*G
E
O
R
G
IA

*

EMC Engineerin
g

 S
e r v ic e s ,  Inc .

Land Surveying
Firm

 N
o. 000051

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY M

O
N

U
M

EN
T FO

U
N

D

PO
IN

T O
F BEG

IN
N

IN
G

PR
O

PER
TY ID

 N
U

M
BER

N
O

W
 O

R
 FO

R
M

ER
LY

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY

AD
JAC

EN
T PR

O
PER

TY LIN
E

PR
O

PER
TY BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

M
ETES AN

D
 BO

U
N

D
S 

N
 47°45'54" E - 497.06'

LEG
EN

D

C
O

N
C

R
ETE M

O
N

U
M

EN
T FO

U
N

D

PLAT BO
O

K
PB

D
EED

 BO
O

K
D

B

PAG
E

PG

N
O

T TO
 SC

ALE
N

.T.S.

5/8" IR
O

N
 R

EBAR
 FO

U
N

D

3/4" O
PEN

 TO
P PIPE FO

U
N

D

SU
R

VEYO
R

S C
ER

TIFIC
A

TIO
N

A
s required by subsection (d) of O

.C.G
.A

. Section 15-6-67, this plat has been prepared by a
land surveyor. This plat has been approved by all applicable local jurisdictions that require
prior approval for recording this type of plat or one or m

ore of the applicable local
jurisdictions do not require approval of this type of plat. For any applicable local jurisdiction
that requires approval of this type of plat, the nam

es of the individuals signing or approving
this plat, the agency or office of that individual, and the date of approval are listed in the
approval table show

n hereon. For any applicable local jurisdiction that does not require
approval of this type of plat, the nam

e of such local jurisdiction and the num
ber of the

applicable ordinance or resolution providing that no such approval is required are listed in
the approval table show

n hereon. Such approvals, affirm
ations, or ordinance or resolution

num
bers should be confirm

ed w
ith the appropriate governm

ental bodies by any purchaser or
user of this plat as to intended use of any parcel. Furtherm

ore, the undersigned land surveyor
certifies that this plat com

plies w
ith the m

inim
um

 technical standards for property surveys
in G

eorgia as set forth in the rules and regulations of the G
eorgia B

oard of R
egistration for

Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and as set forth in O
.C

.G
.A

. Section 15-6-67.

C
ER

TIFIC
A

TE O
F A

PPR
O

VA
L FO

R
 R

EC
O

R
D

IN
G

Pursuant to the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Statesboro, G
eorgia, all the requirem

ents
for approval having been fulfilled, this final plat w

as given approval by the City of Statesboro.

M
A

Y
O

R                                      
             D

A
TE

 D
IRECTO

R O
F PLA

N
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T
D

A
TE

SEE SH
EETS 2-3 FO

R
 PH

ASE 1 SU
BD

IVISIO
N

 D
ETAIL

EASEM
EN

T TAG
 LABLE

E# or C
E#

THIS BOX IS RESERVED FOR THE SUPERIOR
COURT CLERKS FILING INFORM

ATION

TH
IS PLAT SU

PER
C

ED
ES PLAT R

EC
O

R
D

ED
 IN

 PLAT BO
O

K 68, PAG
ES 37-39

DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F THE PACKINGHOUSE GROUP, LLC PIN:MS70000002 000 DB 2311, PG 308 PB 18, PG 246

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F UNITED FELLOWSHIP WORSHIP CENTER, INC. PIN:MS69000003A002 DB 2222, PG 99 PB 62, PG 475

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F UNITED FELLOWSHIP WORSHIP CENTER, INC. PIN:MS69000003A002 DB 2222, PG 99 PB 62, PG 475

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F FOXRIDGE APARTMENTS GEORGIA, LLC PIN:MS69000009 000 DB 2478, PG 479 PB 16, PG 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F PAMELA M. HOLLOWAY PIN:MS69000003A003 DB 2465, PG 86 PB 62, PG 476

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F AULBERT & BOB BRANNEN FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP PIN:MS69000006 000 DB 1911, PG 120 PB 33, PG 152

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PIN:MS69000003B000 DB 558, PG 196

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F MOSSY OAK COVE SUBDIVISION PB 62, PG 633

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT 1 1.656 ACRES (72,127 SQ. FT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 113

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 114

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 115

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 116

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 117

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 119

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 120

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 121

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 122

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 86

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 85

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 83

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 82

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 81

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 80

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 77

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 76

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 108

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 109

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 110

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 111

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 112

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 107

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 3 (POND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUMP STATION SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT 2 8.694 ACRES (378,718 SQ. FT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS6900000A000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS6900000A000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 1,970' TO E. PARRISH ST./U.S. HWY 301

AutoCAD SHX Text
O:\2018\18-2056 HARTFORD SUBD_LAMAR SMITH\DWG\18-2056V_S02 HARTFORD MAJOR SUBDIVISION (SHEET 1 OF 3).DWG 2/24/2020 2:10 PM 2/24/2020 2:10 PM2/24/2020 2:10 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID NORTH - GEORGIA SPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD83 - EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" OTPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 3343

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA REG. L. S. LIC. NO. 3343										DATE					DATE					



PACKINGHOUSE ROAD

80' PUBLIC R/W

(ASPHALT SURFACE)

LO
T 1

0.234 AC
R

ES

(10,190 SQ
. FT.)

LO
T 2

0.357 AC
R

ES
(15,556 SQ

. FT.)

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY

3.905 AC
R

ES

(170,116 SQ
. FT.)

LOT 3
0.441 ACRES

(19,202 SQ. FT.)

LOT 4

0.274 ACRES

(11,920 SQ. FT.)

LOT 5
0.233 ACRES

(10,132 SQ. FT.)

LOT 6
0.230 ACRES

(10,006 SQ. FT.)

LOT 7
0.230 ACRES

(10,004 SQ. FT.)

LOT 8
0.231 ACRES

(10,006 SQ. FT.)

LOT 9
0.251 ACRES

(10,931 SQ. FT.)

LOT 10
0.405 ACRES

(17,661 SQ. FT.)

LOT 11

0.524 ACRES

(22,844 SQ. FT.)

LO
T 12

0.266 AC
R

ES

(11,596 SQ
. FT.)

LOT 13

0.237 ACRES

(10,336 SQ. FT.)

LOT 14

0.233 ACRES

(10,150 SQ. FT.)

LOT 15

0.311 ACRES

(13,534 SQ. FT.)

LOT 107
0.248 ACRES

(10,820 SQ. FT.)

LOT 108
0.232 ACRES

(10,087 SQ. FT.)

LOT 109
0.232 ACRES

(10,087 SQ. FT.)

LOT 110
0.232 ACRES

(10,087 SQ. FT.)

LOT 111
0.232 ACRES

(10,087 SQ. FT.)

LOT 112
0.256 ACRES

(11,163 SQ. FT.)

LOT 88

0.263 ACRES

(11,470 SQ. FT.)

LOT 87

0.230 ACRES

(10,030 SQ. FT.)

LOT 86

0.230 ACRES

(10,035 SQ. FT.)

(10,040 SQ. FT.)

ALLMAN AVENUE

60' RIGHT-OF-WAY (PRIVATE)

W
IL

L
IS W

A
Y

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

B
R

A
X

T
O

N
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

H
A

R
T

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

N
 78°23'40" W

 - 125.86'

N 51°39'23" W
 - 210.71'

N 24°55'06" W - 148.31'

N 05°04'14" W - 132.04'

N 05°04'14" W - 133.14'

N 05°04'14" W - 134.22'

N 05°04'14" W - 135.29'

N 05°04'14" W - 136.35'

N 07°54'46" E - 143.82'

N 34°39'02" E - 219.11'

S 05°34'59" E - 131.01'

S 05°34'59" E - 131.01'

S 05°34'59" E - 131.01'

S 05°34'59" E - 131.00'

S 05°34'59" E - 131.00'

L19

C21

N
 84°55'46" E - 351.93' - TO

TAL
C20

L18

N 05°41'26" W - 80.00'

N
 84°29'31" E - 399.11'

N 05°49'56" W - 281.93' - TOTAL

N
 84°06'17" E - 895.60' - TO

TAL

S 04°44'01" W - 137.44' - TOTAL

N 66°18'57" E - 166.44' - TO
TAL

L4

L9

L10

N 09°50'35" W - 125.17'

C
19

L11
L12

S 84°55'46" W
 - 492.02' - TO

TAL

L13

S 84°29'31" W
 - 112.45'

L14

S 84°29'31" W
 - 399.31'

N 46°57'37" E - 107.58'

L15

N 22°31'40" W - 142.54'

N 23°41'29" W - 145.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 144.99'

L1

N
 84°29'31" E - 112.72'

L2 C1

C3

C
4

N
 84°55'46" E - 351.94' - TO

TAL
C

5
C6

C7

C8

N 23°41'29" W - 101.24'

L3

N
 84°36'00" E - 83.12'

C
9

C
10

N 66°18'31" E - 202.82' - TO
TAL

N 23°41'29" W - 101.24' C12

C
18

S 23°41'29" E - 130.36'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.29'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.22'

S 05°41'26" E - 279.23' - TIE

N 05°49'56" W - 281.40' - TIE

S 03°04'39" E - 153.00' - TIE

C11

C2

S 84°29'31" W
 - 399.14'

N
 84°29'31" E - 399.28'

C
O

M
M

O
N

 AR
EA 2

0.092 AC
R

ES
(3,993 SQ

. FT.)

C
O

M
M

O
N

 AR
EA 1

0.092 AC
R

ES
(3,991 SQ

. FT.)

SH
EET

O
F

Prepared for:

SU
R

VEY D
ATE:

SERVICES, INC.
 EMC ENGINEERING 

SC
ALE:

D
ATE:

PR
O

JEC
T N

O
.:

SU
R

VEYED
 BY:

C
H

EC
KED

 BY:

D
ESIG

N
ED

 BY:
D

R
AW

N
 BY:

COLUMBUS, SAVANNAH, STATESBORO, AND VALDOSTA
OFFICE LOCATIONS: ALBANY, ATLANTA, AUGUSTA, BRUNSWICK,

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. BY DATE

G
R

APH
IC

 SC
ALE: 1" =

0'

PO Box 2086
1211 Merchant Way, Suite 201
Statesboro, GA 30458
Ph: (912) 764-7022
Fax: (912) 233-4580
statesboro@emc-eng.com
www.emc-eng.com

ENVIRONMENTAL

CIVIL
MARINE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION

PIN:MS69000003C000 & PIN: MS69000003A000
1209TH G.M.D., STATESBORO, BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

HARTFORD SUBDIVISION - PHASE 1

LSSD HARTFORD, LLC

18-2056
SAC-
D

EP
06/16/2019

W
PW

1" = 50'
10/08/2019

2
3

1 ADD (PRIVATE) TO ROAD R/W SAC 2/19/20

50'
50'

50'

25'

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY M

O
N

U
M

EN
T FO

U
N

D

5/8" IR
O

N
 R

EBAR
 SET W

/C
AP

PO
IN

T O
F BEG

IN
N

IN
G

PR
O

PER
TY ID

 N
U

M
BER

N
O

W
 O

R
 FO

R
M

ER
LY

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY

AD
JAC

EN
T PR

O
PER

TY LIN
E

PR
O

PER
TY BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

M
ETES AN

D
 BO

U
N

D
S 

N
 47°45'54" E - 497.06'

LEG
EN

D

C
O

N
C

R
ETE M

O
N

U
M

EN
T FO

U
N

D

PLAT BO
O

K
PB

D
EED

 BO
O

K
D

B

PAG
E

PG

N
O

T TO
 SC

ALE
N

.T.S.

THIS BOX IS RESERVED FOR THE SUPERIOR
COURT CLERKS FILING INFORM

ATION

SU
R

VEYO
R

S C
ER

TIFIC
A

TIO
N

A
s required by subsection (d) of O

.C.G
.A

. Section 15-6-67, this plat has been prepared by a
land surveyor. This plat has been approved by all applicable local jurisdictions that require
prior approval for recording this type of plat or one or m

ore of the applicable local
jurisdictions do not require approval of this type of plat. For any applicable local jurisdiction
that requires approval of this type of plat, the nam

es of the individuals signing or approving
this plat, the agency or office of that individual, and the date of approval are listed in the
approval table show

n hereon. For any applicable local jurisdiction that does not require
approval of this type of plat, the nam

e of such local jurisdiction and the num
ber of the

applicable ordinance or resolution providing that no such approval is required are listed in
the approval table show

n hereon. Such approvals, affirm
ations, or ordinance or resolution

num
bers should be confirm

ed w
ith the appropriate governm

ental bodies by any purchaser or
user of this plat as to intended use of any parcel. Furtherm

ore, the undersigned land surveyor
certifies that this plat com

plies w
ith the m

inim
um

 technical standards for property surveys
in G

eorgia as set forth in the rules and regulations of the G
eorgia B

oard of R
egistration for

Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and as set forth in O
.C

.G
.A

. Section 15-6-67.
TAG

 LABLE
L# or C

#

5/8" IR
O

N
 R

EBAR
 FO

U
N

D

OF A
UT

H
O

R
IZ

A
T ION

CER
T

IFIC
A

TE

*G
E
O
R
G
IA

*

EMC Engineerin
g

 S
e r v ic e s ,  Inc .

Land Surveying
Firm

 N
o. 000051

SITE

301

80
24

1.
H

orizontal D
atum

 is G
eorgia State Plane C

oordinate System
 of 1985, East

Zone, N
orth Am

erican D
atum

 of 1983 (N
AD

83).
2.

Basis of Bearings and H
orizontal C

ontrol w
ere obtained utilizing G

PS
(global positioning system

s). The equipm
ent used to obtain this data w

as a
C

arlson BR
x6 G

N
SS receiver [R

TK Accuracy (H
orizontal: 8m

m
 + 1ppm

R
M

S) (Vertical: 15m
m

 + 1ppm
 R

M
S)] w

ith a C
arlson R

T3 data collector
receiving R

TK corrections via a Verizon Jetpack M
iFi 6620L from

 the eG
PS

Solutions R
eal Tim

e N
etw

ork. The technique used w
as R

TK corrected
m

easurem
ents from

 a Trim
ble VR

S R
eal Tim

e N
etw

ork operated by eG
PS

Solutions, Inc.
3.

All deed book references show
n hereon are recorded in the C

lerk of
Superior C

ourt's O
ffice of Bulloch C

ounty, G
eorgia.

4.
This survey w

as prepared w
ithout the benefit of an abstract of title. Subject

and adjacent property ow
ners' deed references w

ere provided by EM
C

Engineering Services, Inc. and are not guaranteed as to accuracy or
com

pleteness.
5.

Locations are accurate only w
here dim

ensioned.
6.

A portion of this property is located in Zone AE (BFE 183), Zone A & Zone
X (shaded), Special Flood H

azard Areas per the Federal Em
ergency

M
anagem

ent Agency's Flood Insurance R
ate M

ap N
o. 13031C

 0209D
;

Effective D
ate: August 5, 2010. The flood hazard lines as show

n on this plat
have been taken digitally from

 http://hazards-fem
a.m

aps.arcgis.com
, and

have not been verified in the field by EM
C

 Engineering Services, Inc.
7.

N
o person m

ay copy, reproduce, distribute or alter this plat in w
hole or in

part w
ithout the w

ritten perm
ission of EM

C
 Engineering Services, Inc.

8.
The term

 "C
ertification" as used in R

ule 180-6-.09 (2) and (3) and relating
to professional engineering or land surveying services, as defined in
O

.C
.G

.A. 43-15-2 (6) and (11), shall m
ean a signed statem

ent based upon
facts and know

ledge know
n to the registrant at the tim

e of the survey and is
not a guarantee or w

arranty, either expressed or im
plied.

9.
This survey is valid only if print has the original signature of the surveyor.

10.
This Survey com

plies w
ith both the rules of the G

eorgia Board of
R

egistration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and the O
fficial

C
ode of G

eorgia Annotated (O
C

G
A) 15-6-67, in that w

here a conflict exists

betw
een those tw

o sets of specifications, the requirem
ents of law

 prevail.
11.

All w
etlands are under the jurisdiction of the U

.S. Arm
y C

orps. of Engineers
and/or the State of G

eorgia D
epartm

ent of N
atural R

esources. Lot ow
ners

are subject to penalty by law
 for disturbance to these protected areas

w
ithout proper perm

it application and approval.
12.

The w
etland lines, as show

n, w
ere taken electronically from

 a W
etland

Survey provided by Vincent H
elm

ly, dated June 18, 2007.

SU
R

VEY D
ATA

45 Lots:
11.679 Acres    (508,701 Square Feet)

R
ight-of-W

ay (Private):
  3.905 Acres    (170,116 Square Feet)

C
om

m
on Area:

  4.126 Acres    (179,738 Square Feet)
Pum

p Station:
  0.146 Acres        (6,374 Square Feet)

Phase 1 Total Area:
19.856 Acres    (864,929 Square Feet)

Parent Tract Acreage:
61.873 Acres (2,695,165 Square Feet)

Plat C
losure:

1 in 58,323
Field C

losure:
1 in 35,744

Angular Error:
01" per angle point

Adjusted by:
C

om
pass R

ule
Equipm

ent used:
C

arlson C
R

2+ R
obotic Total Station

C
arlson BR

x6 G
N

SS G
PS/eG

PS N
etw

ork
Field W

ork C
om

pleted on:
June 18, 2019

       R
EFER

EN
C

ES
PB 63, PG

 192
D

B 2502, PG
 254

PB 62, PG
 633

SU
R

VEY N
O

TES
C

ER
TIFIC

A
TE O

F A
PPR

O
VA

L FO
R

 R
EC

O
R

D
IN

G
Pursuant to the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Statesboro, G

eorgia, all the requirem
ents

for approval having been fulfilled, this final plat w
as given approval by the City of Statesboro.

M
A

Y
O

R                                      
             D

A
TE

 D
IRECTO

R O
F PLA

N
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T
D

A
TE

3/4" O
PEN

 TO
P PIPE FO

U
N

D
M

EAN
D

ER
 PO

IN
T

This property is zoned R
-10 (Single Fam

ily R
esidential)

LO
T R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

Area, W
idth & Yard R

equirem
ents

M
inim

um
 Lot Size:

10,000 sq. ft.
M

inim
um

 Lot W
idth at Front Setback:

70 feet

M
inim

um
 Front Yard Setback:

20 feet
M

inim
um

 Side Yard Setback:
10 feet

M
inim

um
 R

ear Yard Setback:
20 feet

The building area shall not exceed 40%
 of  the lot area.

H
eight R

egulations
For any dw

elling, 35 feet and not to exceed 3 stories.
For any building accessory to any dw

elling, 15 feet and
not exceeding one story.

ZO
N

IN
G

TH
IS PLAT SU

PER
C

ED
ES PLAT R

EC
O

R
D

ED
 IN

 PLAT BO
O

K 68, PAG
ES 37-39

DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F UNITED FELLOWSHIP WORSHIP CENTER, INC. PIN:MS69000003A002 DB 2222, PG 99 PB 62, PG 475 ZONED: CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS69000003C000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (BFE 183)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 19.856 ACRES (864,929 SQ. FT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS6900000A000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192 ZONED: R10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X (SHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PIN:MS69000003B000 DB 558, PG 196 ZONED: R15

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 1,970' TO E. PARRISH ST./U.S. HWY 301

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (BFE 183)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMER PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F MOSSY OAK COVE SUBDIVISION PB 62, PG 633 ZONED: R8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS6900000A000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192 ZONED: R10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F UNITED FELLOWSHIP WORSHIP CENTER, INC. PIN:MS69000003A002 DB 2222, PG 99 PB 62, PG 475 ZONED: CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O:\2018\18-2056 HARTFORD SUBD_LAMAR SMITH\DWG\18-2056V_S02 HARTFORD MAJOR SUBDIVISION (SHEET 2-3 OF 3).DWG 2/24/2020 2:11 PM 2/24/2020 2:11 PM2/24/2020 2:11 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID NORTH - GEORGIA SPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD83 - EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 3343

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA REG. L. S. LIC. NO. 3343										DATE					DATE					

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PACKINGHOUSE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E PARRISH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
VETERANS MEMORIAL PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHELBY ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATHEWS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E PARRISH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESTER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E NORTHSIDE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
E OLIFF ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" OTPF



VETERANS MEMORIAL PARKWAY

250' PUBLIC R/W

(DIVIDED ASPHALT SURFACE)

W
IL

L
IS W

A
Y

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

LOT 14

LOT 15

0.311 ACRES

(13,534 SQ. FT.)

C
O

M
M

O
N

 AR
EA 3

(PO
N

D
)

3.943 AC
R

ES
(171,754 SQ

. FT.)

PU
M

P STATIO
N

 SITE
0.146 AC

R
ES

(6,374 SQ
. FT.)

LOT 87

0.230 ACRES

(10,030 SQ. FT.)

LOT 86

0.230 ACRES

(10,035 SQ. FT.)

LOT 85

0.230 ACRES

(10,040 SQ. FT.)

LOT 84

0.231 ACRES

(10,046 SQ. FT.)

LOT 83

0.231 ACRES

(10,051 SQ. FT.)

LOT 82

0.231 ACRES

(10,057 SQ. FT.)

LOT 81

0.231 ACRES

(10,062 SQ. FT.)

LOT 80

0.231 ACRES

(10,067 SQ. FT.)

LOT 79

0.231 ACRES

(10,073 SQ. FT.)

LOT 78

0.231 ACRES

(10,078 SQ. FT.)

LOT 77

0.231 ACRES

(10,084 SQ. FT.)

LOT 76

0.232 ACRES

(10,089 SQ. FT.)

LOT 113

0.256 ACRES

(11,162 SQ. FT.)

LOT 114

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 122

0.239 ACRES

(10,390 SQ. FT.)

LO
T 123

0.335 AC
R

ES
(14,583 SQ

. FT.)

LOT 115

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 116

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 117

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 118

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 119

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 120

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

LOT 121

0.241 ACRES

(10,500 SQ. FT.)

ALLMAN AVENUE

60' RIGHT-OF-WAY (PRIVATE)

60' R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 (P

R
IV

A
T

E
)

N 66°18'57" E - 166.44' - TO
TAL

L4

N 66°18'31" E - 849.19' - TO
TAL

L5

N 52°17'45" E - 310.36' - TOTAL

S 27°18'36" E - 121.35'

L6

L7

L8

S 27°18'36" E - 360.09'

S 84°30'47" W
 - 547.38'

S 66°21'40" W
 - 1007.38' - TO

TAL

N 23°41'29" W - 144.99'

C14

C13

S 66°18'31" W
 - 653.42' - TO

TAL

N 23°41'29" W - 101.24'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 66°18'31" E - 202.82' - TO
TAL

N 23°41'29" W - 101.24' C12

C15

C16

C17

S 66°18'31" W
 - 916.24' - TO

TAL

S 30°17'18" E - 93.47'

L16
L17

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 150.00'

N 23°41'29" W - 143.57'

S 23°41'29" E - 131.17'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.99'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.92'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.85'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.78'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.71'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.64'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.57'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.50'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.43'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.36'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.29'

S 23°41'29" E - 130.22'

C11

S 27°18'36" E - 218.81' - TIE

SH
EET

O
F

Prepared for:

SU
R

VEY D
ATE:

SERVICES, INC.
 EMC ENGINEERING 

SC
ALE:

D
ATE:

PR
O

JEC
T N

O
.:

SU
R

VEYED
 BY:

C
H

EC
KED

 BY:

D
ESIG

N
ED

 BY:
D

R
AW

N
 BY:

COLUMBUS, SAVANNAH, STATESBORO, AND VALDOSTA
OFFICE LOCATIONS: ALBANY, ATLANTA, AUGUSTA, BRUNSWICK,

REVISION DESCRIPTIONNO. BY DATE

G
R

APH
IC

 SC
ALE: 1" =

0'

PO Box 2086
1211 Merchant Way, Suite 201
Statesboro, GA 30458
Ph: (912) 764-7022
Fax: (912) 233-4580
statesboro@emc-eng.com
www.emc-eng.com

ENVIRONMENTAL

CIVIL
MARINE

MAJOR SUBDIVISION

PIN:MS69000003C000 & PIN: MS69000003A000
1209TH G.M.D., STATESBORO, BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

HARTFORD SUBDIVISION - PHASE 1

LSSD HARTFORD, LLC

18-2056
SAC-
D

EP
06/16/2019

W
PW

1" = 50'
10/08/2019

3
3

1 ADD (PRIVATE) TO ROAD R/W SAC 2/19/20

50'
50'

50'

25'

THIS BOX IS RESERVED FOR THE SUPERIOR
COURT CLERKS FILING INFORM

ATION

SU
R

VEYO
R

S C
ER

TIFIC
A

TIO
N

A
s required by subsection (d) of O

.C
.G

.A
. Section 15-6-67, this plat has been prepared by a

land surveyor. This plat has been approved by all applicable local jurisdictions that require
prior approval for recording this type of plat or one or m

ore of the applicable local
jurisdictions do not require approval of this type of plat. For any applicable local jurisdiction
that requires approval of this type of plat, the nam

es of the individuals signing or approving
this plat, the agency or office of that individual, and the date of approval are listed in the
approval table show

n hereon. For any applicable local jurisdiction that does not require
approval of this type of plat, the nam

e of such local jurisdiction and the num
ber of the

applicable ordinance or resolution providing that no such approval is required are listed in
the approval table show

n hereon. Such approvals, affirm
ations, or ordinance or resolution

num
bers should be confirm

ed w
ith the appropriate governm

ental bodies by any purchaser or
user of this plat as to intended use of any parcel. Furtherm

ore, the undersigned land surveyor
certifies that this plat com

plies w
ith the m

inim
um

 technical standards for property surveys
in G

eorgia as set forth in the rules and regulations of the G
eorgia B

oard of R
egistration for

Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and as set forth in O
.C

.G
.A

. Section 15-6-67.

OF A
UT

H
O

R
IZ

A
T ION

CER
T

IFIC
A

TE

*G
E
O
R
G
IA

*

EMC Engineerin
g

 S
e r v ic e s ,  Inc .

Land Surveying
Firm

 N
o. 000051

IN
SET - PA

R
EN

T PA
R

C
EL

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY M

O
N

U
M

EN
T FO

U
N

D

5/8" IR
O

N
 R

EBAR
 SET W

/C
AP

PO
IN

T O
F BEG

IN
N

IN
G

PR
O

PER
TY ID

 N
U

M
BER

N
O

W
 O

R
 FO

R
M

ER
LY

R
IG

H
T-O

F-W
AY

AD
JAC

EN
T PR

O
PER

TY LIN
E

PR
O

PER
TY BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

M
ETES AN

D
 BO

U
N

D
S 

N
 47°45'54" E - 497.06'

LEG
EN

D

C
O

N
C

R
ETE M

O
N

U
M

EN
T FO

U
N

D

PLAT BO
O

K
PB

D
EED

 BO
O

K
D

B

PAG
E

PG

N
O

T TO
 SC

ALE
N

.T.S.

TAG
 LABLE

L# or C
#

5/8" IR
O

N
 R

EBAR
 FO

U
N

D

C
ER

TIFIC
A

TE O
F A

PPR
O

VA
L FO

R
 R

EC
O

R
D

IN
G

Pursuant to the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Statesboro, G
eorgia, all the requirem

ents
for approval having been fulfilled, this final plat w

as given approval by the City of Statesboro.

M
A

Y
O

R                                      
             D

A
TE

 D
IRECTO

R O
F PLA

N
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T
D

A
TE

3/4" O
PEN

 TO
P PIPE FO

U
N

D
M

EAN
D

ER
 PO

IN
T

TH
IS PLAT SU

PER
C

ED
ES PLAT R

EC
O

R
D

ED
 IN

 PLAT BO
O

K 68, PAG
ES 37-39

DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (12.5' EACH SIDE OF PROPERTY LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (7.5' EACH SIDE OF PROPERTY LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS6900000A000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192 ZONED: R10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS6900000A000 DB 2502, PG 254 PB 63, PG 192 ZONED: R10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PIN:MS69000003B000 DB 558, PG 196 ZONED: R15

AutoCAD SHX Text
O:\2018\18-2056 HARTFORD SUBD_LAMAR SMITH\DWG\18-2056V_S02 HARTFORD MAJOR SUBDIVISION (SHEET 2-3 OF 3).DWG 2/24/2020 2:12 PM 2/24/2020 2:12 PM2/24/2020 2:12 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID NORTH - GEORGIA SPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD83 - EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 3343

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA REG. L. S. LIC. NO. 3343										DATE					DATE					

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.873 ACRES N/F LSSD HARTFORD, LLC PIN:MS69000003A000 & MS69000003C000 MS69000003C000 PB 63, PG 192 DB 2502, PG 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINING 35.783 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 19.846 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINING 6.244 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" OTPF





 

Page 1 of 2 

STATE OF GEORGIA  

COUNTY OF BULLOCH 

 

AGREEMENT FOR OWNERSHIP, USE, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND/OR 

REPLACEMENT OF WATER MAINS AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the __ day of April, 2020, by and 

between LSSD HARTFORD, LLC, a Georgia limited liability company (“LSSD”), and Mayor 

and Council of the City of Statesboro (the “City”).  

WHEREAS, LSSD is the owner of certain land consisting of approximately 61.87 acres 

(the “Property”) as described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein; 

WHEREAS, LSSD intends to develop the Property for single family residential home sites 

(the “Community”) in several phases (each a “Phase” and collectively the “Phases”);  

WHEREAS, as of the date hereof, the City has approved and LSSD has recorded a plat for 

Phase 1 of the Community (“Phase 1”) as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated 

herein; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of its approval of Phase 1 and future Phases, the City is 

requiring LSSD to make certain agreements with respect to water mains and associated 

improvements, detention ponds, and other improvements in, on, under, or to the Property      

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants contained in this Agreement and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as 

follows:  

I. Water Mains and Related Improvements.  Upon execution of this Agreement,  (i) 

LSSD shall warranty maintenance, repair, and/or replacement (as necessary) the water main, 

hydrants, and water valves servicing the Property for a period of three hundred sixty-five (365) 

days.  Following the expiration of said 365-day period ownership and responsibility for 

chlorination, testing, maintenance, repair, and/or replacement of the same, shall pass to the City.  

(ii)  LSSD shall warranty maintenance, repair, and/or replacement (as necessary) of the lateral 

lines in Phase 1 only for a period of three hundred sixty-five (365) days.  Following the expiration 

of said 365-day period, ownership and responsibility for maintenance, repair, and/or replacement 

of said Phase I lateral lines shall pass to the City.  Upon the recordation of a plat for each future 

Phase after Phase 1, (i)  LSSD will warranty maintenance, repair, and/or replacement (as 

necessary) of the lateral lines for such Phase for a period of three hundred and sixty-five days (365) 

days commencing on the recordation of the plat for such Phase, and (ii)  upon the expiration of 

each such 365-day period, ownership and responsibility for maintenance, repair, and/or 

replacement of the lateral lines for such Phase shall pass to the City.   

II. LSSD shall be responsible for maintaining all detention ponds and common areas 

in each Phase from the platting thereof until such time as LSSD assigns such obligations to any 

homeowners’ or property owners’ association established for the Community, and at such time 

LSSD shall cease to have any such maintenance obligations.   

III. LSSD shall fully comply with all laws, rules; regulations and requirements of any 





 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Venus Mack, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari Barr, District 5 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
    
 
To:   Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From:  John Washington, Director of Public Works and Engineering 
  Kiara Ahmed, Civil Engineer 
   
Date:  March 13, 2020 
 
RE: Recommendation of Low Bidder for “City of Statesboro Street Resurfacing FY 2020” 
 
Policy Issue:  Purchasing 
 
Recommendation:  
The low bidder, Sikes Brothers Inc., meets the requirements of the bid package and 
submitted an acceptable bid bond.  Staff recommends awarding this contract to Sikes 
Brothers Inc. in the amount of $996,500.00 and requests approval to spend up to the 
budgeted amount of $1,100,952.80 for additional work to be based on contractor’s unit bid 
prices.  
 
Background:  
The work in this contract includes, but is not limited to, asphalt resurfacing of approximately 
6.33 miles of city streets, 820 square yards of 6” GAB installation, 47,530 square yards of 
asphalt milling, 935 feet of asphalt leveling, as well as some full depth reconstruction and 
reinstallation of roadway striping.  
 
The low bidder is Sikes Brothers Inc. with a bid of $996,500.00, followed by McLendon 
Enterprises, Inc. with a bid of $1,017,330.76, R.B. Baker with a bid of $1,171,738.90, and  
Ellis Wood Contracting with a bid of $1,237,903.65. 
 
Budget Impact:   
The low bid submitted by Sikes Brothers Inc. is below the budgeted amount of $1,100,952.80.  
The project is to be paid for by 2020 LMIG funds in the amount of $328,952.80 and 2020 
TSPLOST funds up to the amount of $772,000. 

Council Person and District: The street resurfacing list includes streets in each district. 
 
Attachments:  FY2020 Resurfacing Project Map 
 
CC:         Darren Prather, Director of Central Services 



1 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT  (Agreement”) is made and entered into this 13th day of 
March, 2020 by and between the CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA hereinafter 
referred to as the "City", party of the first part, and SIKES BROTHERS INC., hereinafter 
referred to as "Contractor", party of the second part, 
 
 WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, and in consideration of the mutual benefits accruing to the parties 
hereto, the Contractor hereby agrees to perform, and City agrees to compensate 
Contractor for, all necessary services to provide CITY OF STATESBORO STREET 
RESURFACING FY 2020, as described in the proposal dated March 11th, 2020, to the 
Central Services Department, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein (the “Proposal”), and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter provided: 
 

1. That written proposal is attached hereto and hereby made a part of this Agreement 
(“Proposal”) and the services described in the Proposal are hereinafter referred to 
as "Scope of Services"; provided, however, that the parties acknowledge and agree 
that any and all completion dates set forth in the Proposal shall be adjusted by 
mutual written agreement of the parties to take account of the date, if any, by which 
this Agreement is executed by both parties. 

 
2. Contractor’s compensation for the services outlined in the Scope of Services 

shall be a Not-To-Exceed amount of $1,100,952.80 based on unit prices as 
provided in the Proposal. 
 

3. Contractor shall not perform any work that is clearly beyond the “Scope of 
Services” unless and until such work has been authorized in writing by the City of 
Statesboro.  Contractor’s compensation for work that is clearly beyond the 
“Scope of Services” shall be at unit prices as provided in the proposal or a 
negotiated rate and in this instance, payment shall be made upon certified billing 
and progress reports to be made monthly to the City by Contractor for work 
performed during the preceding month, with payment to be made by the City 
within thirty (30) days from receipt of such billing.   
 

4. If any items in any invoices submitted by the Contractor are disputed by the City 
in good faith for any reason, including the lack of reasonable supporting 
documentation, City shall temporarily delete the item(s) and shall promptly notify 
Contractor of the dispute and request clarification and/or remedial action. After 
the dispute has been settled, Contractor shall include the disputed item on a 
subsequent regularly scheduled invoice or on a special invoice for the disputed 
item only.  The undisputed portion of the invoices shall, however, be paid within 
the normal 30-day period. 



2 
 

 
5. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the payment of all assessments, 

payroll taxes, or contributions, whether State or Federal, as to all Contractor’s 
employees engaged in the performance of work under this contract.  In addition, 
the Contractor agrees to pay any and all gross receipts, compensation, 
transaction, sales, use, or other taxes and assessments of whatever nature and 
kind levied or assessed as a consequence of the work performed or on the 
compensation paid under this contract; provided, however, that, in no event shall 
Contractor be responsible for payment of any taxes relating to the City’s income. 
 

6. Alterations, deletions, and/or additions to the terms and conditions of this 
contract may only be made by the mutual written consent of the parties.  
 

7. Any term or condition of the Contract which by operation or existence is in 
conflict with applicable Local, State, or Federal Law shall be rendered void and 
inoperative. City and the Contractor agree to accept the remaining terms and 
conditions. 

 
8. Should any part of this Agreement be declared unenforceable, all remaining 

sections shall remain enforceable. 
 

9. This Agreement is made under, and in all respects shall be interpreted, 
construed, and governed by and in accordance with, the laws of the State of 
Georgia.  Venue for any legal action resulting from this Agreement shall lie in 
Bulloch County, Georgia. 

 
10. Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that they will not discriminate, with 

reference to work to be performed pursuant hereto, against any employee or 
applicants because of age, race, color, religion, sex, disability, sexual orientation, 
genetic information or national origin. 

 
11. All data, materials, documents, notes, memoranda, intellectual property, and other 

information provided or disclosed by Contractor to City, or otherwise used by 
Contractor to provide or perform any Scope of Services, in connection with this 
Agreement shall be owned solely and exclusively by Contractor and shall constitute 
the confidential and proprietary information of Contractor for all purposes hereunder 
(all the foregoing, collectively, “Contractor’s Confidential Information”).  The City 
shall neither copy, nor disclose nor distribute to any third party, any of Contractor’s’ 
Confidential Information without Contractor’s prior written consent unless required 
to do so by the Georgia Open Records Act (O.C.G.A. § 50-18-70 et. seq.), other 
similar laws, in response to a court order, subpoena, or other legal process.  Prior 
to any such disclosure the City shall notify the Contractor.  Further, the City shall 
not use any such Contractor’s Confidential Information, except to the extent 
permitted hereunder.  The City’s obligations under this Section 11 shall survive any 



3 
 

termination or expiration of this Agreement, and promptly after any such termination 
or expiration, or upon any request by Contractor, the City shall return to Contractor 
all such Contractor’s’ Confidential Information and all copies thereof unless the City 
is required by law to retain the documents.  In no event shall the City acquire any 
ownership or other rights in any Contractor’s Confidential Information, whether by 
implication or otherwise, except to the extent expressly set forth herein.  Subject to 
the foregoing in this Section 11, Contractor shall make available to the City all data, 
notes and memoranda completed during the Scope of Services and upon 
completion of the services will forward to the City the results of the Scope of 
Services for its use.    

 
12. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time and for any reason 

upon (30) days prior written notice.  Upon termination Contractor shall be entitled to 
payment only for the actual cost of the work completed in conformity with this 
Agreement and any other costs actually incurred as are permitted by this 
Agreement.  

 
13. All claims, disputes and other matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement or 

the breach hereof shall be governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. 
 

14. Contractor agrees, on behalf of the City, to comply with the requirements of the Fair 
Credit Reporting Act.  Contractor agrees to give notice to and obtain written 
authorization from every applicant prior to conducting any background investigation 
on said applicant. 

 
15. This Agreement is intended by the parties hereto to be the final expression of 

their Agreement, and it constitutes the full and entire understanding between the 
parties with respect to the subject hereof, notwithstanding any representations, 
statements, or agreements to the contrary heretofore made. 

 



4 
 

WITNESS: CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME  
 
 
 

_________________________________        
 

 
Vendor Number________________ 

 
 
 
Recommended by: _______________________________________ 
           Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
 
         
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
I Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF STATESBORO 
 
 
 
 
 
By:__________________________ By: _________________________________ 
      Leah Harden, City Clerk       Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
 
 



Spring St
Johnson St to

Pine St

Lanier Drive
Bus Stop section

in front of
Cambridge at

Southern to

Rogers Court
Rogers Road to
Cul-de-sac

Lanier Drive
Bus stop section

near Kennedy Hall to

Garden Way
Oakcrest Drive to
Cul-de-sac

Scotdale Court
Oakcrest Drive to

Cul-de-sac

Courtland Street
Oak Street to
Railroad Street

Debbie Lane
Cawana Road to

Lee Drive

Bel-Lane Avenue
Pitt Moore Road to
Wendowwod Drive

Spruce Street
Johnson Street to

Pine Street

Bulloch Street
Johnson Street to
Martin Luther King Jr. Drive

Sherwood Court
Belair Drive to
Cul-de-sac

Jet Drive
Simmons Road to

Northside Drive

Lee Drive
Edwina Drive to

Terminus

Peachtree Street
East Terminus to

West Terminus

Gary Street
East Main Street to
Kingswood AvenueEast Vine Street

South Main Street to
South Mulberry Street

John Paul Avenue
Gentilly Road to
Rogers Road

Herty Drive
Fair Road to
Gentilly Road

Wilburn Road
Hart Street to
Wilburn Circle

Pine Street
East Terminus to
West Terminus

East Olliff Street
North Main Street to

North Zetterower Avenue

East Grady Street
South Zetterower Avenue to
Donehoo Street

North Mulberry Street
East Main Street to

East Olliff Street

Cromartie Drive
Bruce Drive to

West Jones Avenue

Georgia Avenue
Chandler Road to
Fair Road

Gordon Street
East Main Street to
Northside Drive

Park Avenue (Northbound)
Stillwell Street to

Savannah Avenue

Peg-Wen Boulevard
Belair Drive to
Jones Mill Road

District 1

District 4

District 2

District 3

District 3

District 5

District 5

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

2020 Resurfacing


























	04-07-2020 Council Agenda
	03-17-2020 Work Session Minuets
	03-17-2020 Council Minutes
	03-22-2020 Special Called Council Minutes
	attachments 3-22
	04-07 memo Resolution 2020-11
	Resolution 2020 Certified City of Ethics
	04-07 Memo Resolution 2020-12
	04-07 Resolution 2020-12
	04-07 Right of Way Tire Reimbursement Program 2020-2021
	04-07 STRW Application
	04-07 Police Deptartment Surplus Equipment
	04-07 Memo-Updated Auto Aid Agreement-3-31-20
	04-07 Updated-Automatic Fire Mutual Aid Agreement-BCFD_SFD-8-20-2019
	Council Memo & Packet_APRIL CC_04-07-2020 (1)
	04-07 FY 2020 resurfacing Memo
	04-07 FY 2020 resurfacing contract
	AGREEMENT
	WITNESSETH
	Vendor Number________________
	Recommended by: _______________________________________
	Charles Penny, City Manager
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	I Cain Smith, City Attorney
	ATTEST:      CITY OF STATESBORO

	04-07 2020_resurfacing project map
	04-07 Atlantic & Southern Equip. for Sidearm Mower
	04-07 Yancy Brother for Backhoe Tractor



